COURT OF APPEALS DIVISION II
	2015 NOV -4 PM 2: 52
No.	STATE OF WASHINGTON
	DEPUTY OURT OF THE STATE HINGTON
JOHN O'NEILL, vs.	Plaintiff,
CHWEN-JYE JU and FRANCES DU JU, and	Defendants; CLERK OF THE SUPPEME COURT E STATE OF WASHINGTON
FRANCES DU JU,	Cross-claimant pro se,
vs. CHWEN-JYE JU,	Cross-defendant;
and	,
FRANCES DU JU,	<b>Petitioner</b> and Third Party Plaintiff <b>pro se</b> ,
vs. JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. a BISHOP, MARSHALL & WEIBEL, 1	

.

.

## **COURT OF APPEALS CASE NO.: 46333-4-II**

APPEAL FROM CLARK COUNTY SUPERIOR COURT The Honorable David E. Gregerson, Case No. 13-2-02571-3

# **PETITION FOR REVIEW**

#### C. ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

1. Whether Bishop and Chase committed per se violations of RCW 61.24.050(2)(a)(i), 61.24.050(2)(a), RCW 61.24.010(4), RCW 61.24.040(7), RCW 61.24.135, and Chapter 19.86 RCW? Whether their violation of RCW 61.24.010(2) is a question of fact? Whether they conducted false notarization of documents? Whether Bishop published the Trustee's Sale in the newspaper to comply with RCW 61.24.040(3)? Whether Bishop and Chase not only tried to deter the Courts from

recognizing that \$16.33 was an issue of per se violation of RCW 61.24.050(2)(a)(i), but also affected Frances Ju's Surplus Funds?

2. Whether RCW 61.24.080 is unconstitutional? Whether Bishop's intentional and willful tardiness of withholding the Surplus Funds for 48 days before filing the funds with the Superior Court resulted in Frances Ju's injury?

3. Whether Judge Gregerson was in violations of ER 103(a)(2), ER 601, and ER 901(b)(1) to rule against Frances Ju's offer of her daughter's Affidavit? Whether this Court would consolidate cases where Judge Gregerson disregarded the statutes, court rules or case law to rule against a certain class of litigants, the Asian women? Whether Judge Gregerson applied his double standard, bias and prejudice in entering the Orders Granting Chase's and Bishop's Motions for Summary Judgment? Whether the appearance of fairness was violated? Whether Judge Gregerson was in violation of the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment? Whether the hearings were fair proceedings under the Constitutions of the United States and Washington State? Whether Judge Gregerson should have disqualified himself in the proceeding? Whether there is a public interest at stake from Judge Gregerson's double standard, bias and prejudice?

4. Whether Chase and Bishop addressed Frances Ju's request for declaratory and other relief in their Motions for Summary Judgment? Whether Chase and Bishop procedurally leaped directly to entry of final judgment when Frances Ju's viable claims remained? Whether Chase's

and Bishop's Motions for final judgment are actually Dispositive Motions in disguise, for which CR 56(c) requires 28-day motion calendar? Whether Judge Gregerson should grant Chase's and Bishop's Motions for final judgment? Whether Judge Gregerson and/or the Court of Appeals ("COA") should have issued a declaratory judgment to remove foreclosure records from Frances Ju's credit report?

5. Whether the COA 3-Judge panel should have granted Frances Ju's requests for relief? Whether the COA should deny Frances Ju's Motion for Reconsideration and Motion to Publish? Whether the lack of review by this Court can impact the fairness and interests of the judicial system?

#### D. <u>STATEMENT OF THE CASE</u>

#### 1. <u>Statement of the Facts</u>.

Petitioner incorporates ¶¶ I. and III.B of Opening Brief ("Op-Br") at pages 1-3 and 8-21; ¶¶ A, C, D, E and F of Reply Brief ("Rpy-Br") at pages 1-2 and 7-21; and ¶¶ 3, 4.A and 4.E of Motion for Reconsideration ("Mot-Rec") at pages 1-5 and 24-25 into this section due to page limit. Please refer to these sections for a more detailed statement with citation to the record.

Successor Trustee Bishop, Marshall & Weibel, P.S. ("Bishop")'s Ms. Bollero identified that this case is regarding "collusive bidding" (RP 4/4/14, 12:20) at the June 21, 2013, Trustee's Sale. This case is regarding Mr. O'Neill's, Bishop's and beneficiary JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. ("Chase")'s violations of Chapters 19.86 RCW and 61.24 RCW; and the superior court's Orders to protect the lawbreakers and the COA's Orders to affirm the superior court's unjustified decisions.

Judge Gregerson's coming to preside over this case was very suspicious and might have his unlawful goal as stated in Op-Br II. 15 at 5 through II. 18 at 6. On February 7, 2014, Judge Gregerson wanted to protect the lawbreaker Mr. O'Neill and dissolved the preliminary injunction that Commissioner Liebman granted to Frances Ju. Mr. O'Neill then negligently sold the Property to Mr. and Mrs. Jones at \$282,000 on April 1, 2014. A quick-illegal-money of "\$109,500 minus his cost" was his gain in nine months. Frances Ju bought the premises in April 1989 and invested money in the premises. Her gain in twenty-four years was less than a half of Mr. O'Neill's illegal gain.

Bishop's Mr. Weibel's Declaration shows that Bishop paid "an additional fee as provided in RCW 36.18.010" for "an emergency nonstandard recording" of "Appointment of Successor Trustee" with Clark County Auditor's Office on August 23, 2013, (CP 46, Op-Br P.34) instead of February 5, 2013, that Bishop and Chase claimed. The County Auditor's Office is a "source whose accuracy cannot reasonably be questioned." Pages 3-5 of Mot-Rec summarized that three genuine issues of material fact existed in the appointment of Successor Trustee. August 23, 2013, was two months after the June 21, 2013, Trustee's Sale. RCW 61.24.010(2) states, "...Only upon recording the appointment of a successor trustee..., the successor trustee shall be vested with all powers of an original trustee." If Bishop had not recorded its appointment as the

successor trustee at the time of the Trustee's Sale, Bishop would not have had the legal right to conduct the Trustee's Sale. The Trustee's Sale must be set aside. This is a very important question of fact for the jury to decide; and a very important fact to affect the outcome of this case. Op-Br also addressed this issue at 43-45, among which Frances Ju cited <u>Klem v.</u> <u>Washington Mutual Bank</u>, 176 Wn.2d 771, 295 P.3d 1179 (2013) to answer Chase's and Bishop's contention regarding false notarization.

Bishop and Chase received money from the Trustee's Sale and did not care about Mr. O'Neill's per se violation of RCW 61.24.135(1) and Frances Ju's right and damages. Rpy-Br at 7-8 and Mot-Rec at 11-16 addressed that Bishop knew or should have known about the abnormal sale process and the collusive bidding; in addition to the "erroneous opening bid amount made by or on behalf of the foreclosing beneficiary", to which RCW 61.24.050(2)(a)(i) identifies as "an error with the trustee foreclosure sale process". RCW 61.24.050(2)(a) requires that up to the eleventh day following the trustee's sale, the trustee, beneficiary, or authorized agent for the beneficiary declare the trustee's sale and trustee's deed void. Nevertheless, Bishop and Chase never sent out a rescission notice. RCW 61.24.135(1) also states, "... The trustee may decline to complete a sale or deliver the trustee's deed and refund the purchase price, if it appears that the bidding has been collusive or defective, or that the sale might have been void." RCW 61.24.040(7) states, "... the trustee shall execute to the purchaser its deed; the deed shall recite the facts showing that the sale was conducted in compliance with all of the requirements of this chapter..." Bishop and Chase were in per se violations of these statutes.

Bishop knew or should have known that because Frances Ju did not have the money to pay her mortgage, her home was foreclosed. It was foreseeable that Frances Ju will face financial difficulty to rent a place or move when Bishop withheld \$75,819.44 of Surplus Funds in its pocket for forty-eight days before it filed the funds with the Superior Court. Bishop's intentional and willful tardiness in filing the Surplus Funds resulted in Frances Ju's being arrested and prosecuted. The related criminal case is still under this Court's consideration on Frances Ju's Motion for Discretionary Review. RCW 61.24.010(4) states, "The trustee or successor trustee has a duty of good faith to the borrower, beneficiary, and grantor." Bishop totally disregarded this duty and was in violation of this statute.

Judge Gregerson did not care about Mr. O'Neill, Chase and Bishop's violations of Chapter 19.86 RCW. Whether Frances Ju suffered injury and damages was not a concern to Judge Gregerson. Judge Gregerson simply habitually granted Frances Ju's opposing parties' motions. Not only were Judge Gregerson's rulings unsupported by the facts and existing case law, but they were also fundamentally unfair.

Chase and Bishop did not address Frances Ju's request for declaratory and other relief when Judge Gregerson granted Chase's and Bishop's Motions for Summary Judgment. Both Chase and Bishop procedurally leaped directly to entry of final judgment when Frances Ju's viable claims remained. Their Motions for final judgment are actually Dispositive Motions in disguise, for which CR 56(c) requires 28-day motion calendar. This is a significant violation of the court rule and procedure. Opinion at 12 stated that Frances Ju "did not utilize the available procedures by seeking the superior court judge's recusal, she has waived the issue." The Opinion did not find that Chase and Bishop were in violation of the court rule and procedure. This shows that this Court did not apply the same standard on the Appellant, Frances Ju, and the Respondents, Chase and Bishop.

Order-Amend stated that Frances Ju "mentioned the yelling man for the very first time in her response to summary judgment, but she offered no evidence in support of the claim." RP 4/4/14, 16:17-17:13 shows that Frances Ju told Judge Gregerson that pursuant to CR 8, the principle of a complaint only requires that a complaint contain a short statement showing that the pleader is entitled to relief. The language in Paragraph 3.8 of the ATP Complaint is a copy of RCW 61.24.135(1). The language in RCW 61.24.135(2) is different. People can tell that it was a violation of RCW 61.24.135(1) by simply taking a quick look at the Chase's Motion for Summary Judgment emphasized the statement. violation of RCW 61.24.135(2). Rpy-Br at 7 ll. 12-15 stated, 'Bishop and Chase did not properly challenge this "collusive bidding" issue during the Superior Court filings; but argued the issue in the appellate process with this Court.' As stated ¶ E.3 *infra*, there was no discovery during the 2-day period between the filing of Frances Ju's ATP Complaint and Chase's filing Motion for Summary Judgment; and there was a big concern of Self-Incrimination if Judge Gregerson had ruled on any discovery dispute.

#### 2. <u>Procedure Relevant to the Issues Presented for Review.</u>

Petitioner incorporates ¶ III.A of Op-Br at pages 5-8 into this section due to page limit. Please refer to the section for a more detailed statement with citation to the record.

The Case Summary shows that on September 15, 2014, Frances Ju's Opening Brief was filed. Both Chase and Bishop ended up with filing "Motions to Extend Time to File" after they filed their Respondent's Briefs late. Frances Ju's November 14, 2014, first Reply Brief was treated as a "Motion to Strike" Bishop's Respondent's Brief. On December 12, 2014, her Reply Brief was filed under the COA's instruction.

On October 31, 2014, "Court's Motion for Sanctions for Failure to File" was filed against Mr. O'Neill. On November 3, 2014 around 7:49 p.m., Mr. O'Neill's attorney Ms. McCoy sent a letter to the Clerk by email to coa2filings and Ms. Mitchell; and Cc'd parties. Ms. McCoy wrote, "Mr. O'Neill was not a party to those Motions and his interests are not affected by the Orders entered, or Ms. Du Ju's current Appeal." Even though what Ms. McCoy claimed was not true, the case summary showed that a decision was entered on the same evening; and that Mr. O'Neill's Respondent's Brief would not be required. Frances Ju's November 14, 2014, "Motion to Modify Decision" was not on the COA's Case Summary; but was denied by the COA Clerk's letter of explanation. The COA set May 19, 2015, as the Non-Oral Argument hearing date. It was not until September 1, 2015, that the Opinion was filed. The COA only adopted the statements from the two respondents, Chase and Bishop, and disregarded the significant issues of material fact in dispute that Frances Ju stated in her briefs and her responses to Chase's and Bishop's Motions for Summary Judgment. The Opinion determined a new question of constitutional principle; reversed an established principle of law; and was in conflict with prior opinions of the court.

Frances Ju filed her Motion to Publish and Mot-Rec on September 18, 2015. The COA's Order-Amend and Orders denying the two Motions were entered on October 27, 2015. The COA did not state any Findings of Fact or Conclusions of Law in its Orders denying Motion to Publish and Mot-Rec; and Judge Melnick replaced Judge Maxa to sign the Order denying Mot-Rec. Judge Melnick is from Clark County.

#### E. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED

Pursuant to RAP 13.4(b)(1), 13.4(b)(2), 13.4(b)(3), 13.4(b)(4), 18.8(a) and 18.12, Frances Ju files her Petition for Review.

Petitioner incorporates ¶¶ IV. and V. of Op-Br at pages 21-48; her Rpy-Br; and Mot-Rec at pages 5-24 into this section due to page limit. Please refer to these sections for a more detailed statement with citation to the record.

RAP 13.4(b) regards "Considerations Governing Acceptance of Review." It states,

A petition for review will be accepted by the Supreme Court only:

(1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or

(2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with another decision of the Court of Appeals; or

(3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or

(4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

#### 1. <u>The Decisions of the Court of Appeals are in Conflict</u> with Other Decisions of the Supreme Court.

Judge Gregerson's six Orders, the COA's Opinion, Order Denying

Motion to Publish and Mot-Rec are in conflict with the following

decisions of the Supreme Court.

Frances Ju cited <u>Klem v. Washington Mutual Bank</u>, 176 Wn.2d 771, 295 P.3d 1179 (2013) to answer Chase's and Bishop's contention regarding false notarization.

(<u>Klem</u>) ¶ 45 states, "The trustee argues as a matter of law that the falsely notarized documents did not cause harm. The trustee is wrong; a false notarization is a crime and undermines the integrity of our institutions upon which all must rely upon the faithful fulfillment of the notary's oath. There remains, however, the factual issue of whether the false notarization was a cause of plaintiff's damages. That is, of course, a question for the jury. <u>Wash. State Physicians Ins. Exch. & Ass'n v. Fisons Corp.</u>, 122 Wash.2d 299, 314, 858 P.2d 1054 (1993) (citing <u>Ayers v.</u> Johnson & Johnson Baby Prods. Co., 117 Wash.2d 747, 753-56, 818 P.2d 1337 (1991))..."

(Mot-Rec, pp. 4-5).

"And we must draw all reasonable inferences in favor of Sutton. <u>Lakey<sup>1</sup>, 176 Wash.2d at 922, 296 P.3d 860</u>." "But treating Sutton's testimony as true, as we must in reviewing a grant of summary judgment, we hold that genuine issues of material fact exist..." The substance of the evidence of "collusive bidding" was made known to Judge Gregerson by Frances Ju's offer and was apparent from the context within which questions were asked. "The court must not weigh the evidence or determine the truth of the matter but only determine whether there is a

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Lakey v. Puget Sound Energy, Inc., 176 Wash.2d 909, 922, 296 P.3d 860 (2013).

genuine issue for trial." <u>Balint v. Carson City</u>, 180 F.3d 1047, 1054 (9<sup>th</sup> Cir. 1999).

(Mot-Rec, pp. 8-9).

RCW 61.24.010(4) states, "The trustee or successor trustee has a duty of good faith to the borrower, beneficiary, and grantor." The Supreme Court addressed this duty of good faith on the trustee in Page 9 of <u>Trujillo v. Nw Trustee Servs., Inc.</u>, (No. 90509-6, decided 8/20/2015): 'RCW 61.24.010(4) then requires a foreclosure trustee to act in good faith toward the borrower, beneficiary, and grantor. This duty "requires the trustee to remain impartial and protect the interests of all the parties."' <u>Lyons v. U.S. Bank Nat'l Ass'n</u>, 181 Wn.2d 775, 787, 336 P.3d 1142 (2014). 'We described this duty in *Lyons*.

A foreclosure trustee must "adequately inform" itself regarding the purported beneficiary's right to foreclose, including, at a minimum, a "cursory investigation" to adhere to its duty of good faith. . . . [A] trustee must treat both sides equally and investigate possible issues using its independent judgment to adhere to its duty of good faith.' *Id.* (internal quotation marks omitted) (quoting *Walker v. Quality Loan Serv. Corp. of Wash.*, 176 Wn. App. 294, 309-10, 308 P.3d 716 (2013)).'

(Mot-Rec, pp. 9-10).

"A plaintiff can establish an unfair or deceptive act or practice by showing "a per se violation of statute, an act or practice that has the capacity to deceive substantial portions of the public, or an unfair or deceptive act or practice not regulated by statute but in violation of public interest." Klem v. Washington Mutual Bank, 176 Wn.2d 771, 787, 295 P.3d 1179 (2013). Bishop and Chase put it in writing that \$95,814.82 was its "opening bid price" before Frances Ju corrected it that the opening bid price was \$95,798.49. Bishop then conducted a deceptive practice by claiming that there was an additional cost of \$16.33; and Chase also made the same statement. Bishop and Chase not only tried to deter the Courts from recognizing that it was an issue of per se violation of RCW 61.24.050(2)(a)(i), but also stole \$16.33 from Frances Ju. If Bishop cannot or would not provide proof why this \$16.33 was legitimate under the principle of accounting, the Surplus Funds should be at least \$75,935.77 instead of \$75,819.44. This Court erred by stating that there "is of no consequence to the issues." This issue could support the elements of Frances Ju's CPA claim under Klem.

(Mot-Rec, ll. 6-22 at 11).

RCW 61.24.040(7) states, "... the trustee shall execute to the purchaser its deed; the deed shall recite the facts showing that the sale was conducted in compliance with all of the requirements of this chapter..." After a "collusive bidding" at the Trustee's Sale, Bishop still disregarded the requirement of RCW 61.24.040(7) and the injury to Frances Ju by executing to Mr. O'Neill its deed. Apparently, Bishop did not "remain impartial and protect the interests of all the parties" as required under <u>Lyons v. U.S. Bank Nat'l Ass'n</u> at 787 and <u>Trujillo v. Nw Trustee Servs.</u>, <u>Inc.</u> at Page 9. Bishop was in violation of its trustee's duty by not acting in good faith toward Frances Ju. This is another Bishop's per se violation of the DTA. Under <u>Klem v. Washington Mutual Bank</u> at 787, Frances Ju "can establish an unfair or deceptive act or practice" against Bishop. <u>Bain</u> and <u>Lyons</u> recognize that a violation of the DTA may support a claim for damages under the CPA if a borrower can establish an unfair or deceptive act or practice. <u>Bain v. Metropolitan Mortgage Group, Inc.</u>, 175 Wn.2d 90, 115-20, 285 P.3d 34 (2012); <u>Lyons v. U.S. Bank Nat'l Ass'n</u> at 784-87.

#### (Mot-Rec, pp. 13-14).

The fact that Bishop withheld \$75,819.44 of Surplus Funds in its pocket for forty-eight days before it filed the funds with the superior court made Frances Ju unable to obtain a "bridge loan" from her relatives. Frances Ju had no financial ability to rent a place or move to comply with the 20-day time frame that the Washington legislative set. Being a foreclosure trustee, Bishop knew or should have known that because Frances Ju did not have the money to pay her mortgage, her home was foreclosed. It was foreseeable that Frances Ju will face financial difficulty to rent a place or move when Bishop withheld the Surplus Funds in its pocket for 48 days. Bishop's intentional and willful tardiness in filing the Surplus Funds resulted in Frances Ju's being arrested and prosecuted. This is another example that Bishop did not "protect the interests of all the parties" as required under Lyons v. U.S. Bank Nat'l Ass'n at 787 and Trujillo v. Nw Trustee Servs., Inc. at Page 9. Bishop was in violation of its trustee's duty by not acting in good faith toward Frances Ju.

(Mot-Rec, ll. 2-16 at 14).

Whether a CPA claimant has suffered injury to business or property is a question of fact. <u>Panag v. Farmers Ins. Co. of Wash.</u>, 166 Wn.2d 27, 65, 204 P.3d 885 (2009). "[T]he exercise of reasonable care, were also questions of fact for the jury to determine." <u>Cornelis DeHeer et</u> <u>al. v. The Seattle Post-Intelligencer et al.</u>, 60 Wn. 2d 122, 124, 372 P.2d 193 (1962).

(Mot-Rec, ll. 2-7 at 16).

In Pages 5-10 of Frances Ju's Responses to Chase's and Bishop's motions for entry of partial final judgment, Frances Ju addressed "Frances Ju's Request for Declaratory and Other Relief is a Justiciable Controversy." (CP 208-213, CP 193-198)... Frances Ju showed the superior court that she satisfied the four elements of Justiciable Controversy under <u>Diversified Indus. Dev. Corp. v. Ripley</u>, 82 Wn.2d 811, 814-15, 514 P.2d 137, 139 (1973); and that the broad issues of public import at play in this case.

#### (Mot-Rec, Il. 11-14 and Il. 19-22 at 24).

In <u>Cox v. Helenius</u>, 103 Wn.2d 383, 693 P.2d 683, this Court held, "Even if the statutory requisites to foreclosure had been satisfied and the Coxes had failed to properly restrain the sale, this trustee's actions, along with the grossly inadequate purchase price, would result in a void sale. SEE LOVEJOY v. AMERICUS, 111 Wash. 571, 574, 191 P. 790 (1920); MIEBACH v. COLASURDO, 102 Wn.2d 170, 685 P.2d 1074 (1984). Because the deed of trust foreclosure process is conducted without review or confirmation by a court, the fiduciary duty imposed upon the trustee is exceedingly high."

#### 2. <u>The Decisions of the Court of Appeals are in Conflict</u> with Other Decisions of the Court of Appeals.

Judge Gregerson's six Orders, the COA's Opinion, Order Denying Motion to Publish and Mot-Rec are in conflict with the following decisions of the Court of Appeals.

In <u>Sutton v. Tacoma School District No. 10, et al</u>, 180 Wn. App. 859, 324 P.3d 763, (2014), this Court held, "the School District argues that Sutton cannot rely solely on her selfserving declaration to avoid summary judgment. The School District claims that a nonmoving party cannot rely on having its statements taken at face value, citing <u>Heath v. Uraga</u>, 106 <u>Wash.App. 506, 513, 24 P.3d 413 (2001)</u>. We disagree."

(Mot-Rec, pp. 5-6).

In <u>Sutton</u> at 767, this Court reasoned, "Although there are circumstances where a party's declaration will not be enough to create a question of fact, here Sutton was an eyewitness and her deposition testimony and declaration were based on her personal observations of Frederick's contact. On summary judgment, we must treat that testimony as true even if it is self serving."... Frances Ju respectfully requests that this Court invoke <u>Sutton</u> and amend its Opinion. There was severe CPA violation on June 21, 2013, and caused injuries to Frances Ju. Violations of the DTA are "unfair" because beneficiaries and trustees have it within their power to comply with the DTA's rules, and consumers have no way to avoid the harm caused when the rules are broken during foreclosure. <u>Blake v. Federal Way Cycle Center</u>, 40 Wn. App. at 310.

(Mot-Rec, pp. 15-16).

There was no reason for Frances Ju to believe that Judge Gregerson would have acted more ethically to give Frances Ju a chance of hearing or to recuse himself on his own while "Recusal decisions lie within the sound discretion *of the trial court.*" <u>Tatham v. Rogers</u>, 170 Wn. App. 76, 87, 283 P.3d 583 (2012)". Opening Brief at 13-14 addressed how hostile Judge Gregerson was when he scolded Frances Ju at the February 7, 2014, hearing. The superior court had to modify the CD of the hearing to some degrees to cover up Judge Gregerson's red face...Frances Ju did not see "balance" and "integrity" from Judge Gregerson.' Frances Ju deeply believes that no reasonable-mind litigant under the same circumstances would repeatedly "utilize the available procedures by seeking the superior court judge's recusal" as this Court cited <u>Henriksen<sup>2</sup></u>, 33 Wn. App. at 128 in the Opinion at 12 ll. 18.

(Mot-Rec, pp. 20-21).

"[A] grossly inadequate purchase price together with circumstances of other unfair procedures may provide equitable grounds to set aside a sale." <u>Albice v. Premier Mortgage Servs. of Washington,</u> <u>Inc.</u>, 157 Wn.App. 932-33, 239 P.3d 1148 (2010).'

(CP 163, Op-Br ll. 8-11 at 43).

#### 3. <u>Significant Questions of Law under the Constitution of</u> <u>the State of Washington and of the United States are</u> <u>Involved</u>.

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