RECEIVED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON Nov 20, 2015, 12:38 pm BY RONALD R. CARPENTER CLERK

No. 92487-2

THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

RECEIVED EMAIL

JOHN O'NEILL, Plaintiff,

VS.

CHWEN-JYE JU and FRANCES DU JU, Defendants

and

FRANCES DU JU, Cross-Claimant, pro se,

VS.

CHWEN-JYE JU, Cross-Defendant

and

FRANCES DU JU, Petitioner and Third-Party Plaintiff, pro se,

vs.

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A. and BISHOP, MARSHALL & WEIBEL, P.S., Respondents and Third-Party Defendants.

Court of Appeal Case No. 46333-4-II Appeal from Clark County Superior Court The Honorable David E. Gregerson, Case No. 13-2-02571-3

JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.'S ANSWER TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

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

IV. ARGUMENT

Washington Supreme Court Rule 13.4(b) provides:

(b) Considerations Governing Acceptance of Review. A petition for review will be accepted by the Supreme Court only:

(1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or

(2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with another decision of the Court of Appeals; or

(3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or

(4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

As discussed below, none of these considerations are applicable to

this case.

A. <u>THE COURT OF APPEALS' DECISION IS</u> <u>NOT IN CONFLICT WITH DECISIONS OF</u> <u>THE WASHINGTON SUPREME COURT.</u>

Petitioner argues, at pp. 10-13 of her Petition for Review, that the

Court of Appeals' opinion in this case is in conflict with several decisions

of the Washington Supreme Court. Although she cites to several Supreme

Court cases, she does not explain how the Court of Appeals' opinion is in conflict with any of them.

The first case cited by Petitioner is Klem v. Washington Mutual Bank, 176 Wn.2d 771, 295 P.3d 1179 (2013). Petitioner cites and discusses Klem several times on pp. 10-12 of her Petition. On p. 10, Petitioner cites *Klem's* holding that the act of false dating by a notary employee of the trustee in a non-judicial foreclosure was an unfair or deceptive act or practice under the Washington Consumer Protection Act. As a threshold matter, the Court of Appeals' decision does not cite, refer to, or discuss Klem. In fact, the Court did not even address Petitioner's argument that a falsely notarized document was used during the nonjudicial foreclosure of her property. The Court of Appeals most likely did not address this issue because Petitioner never provided any evidence to support this claim. See, Respondent JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.'s Response Brief ("Chase's Response Brief") filed in the Court of Appeals Chase incorporates that portion of its response brief by at 27-28. addressing this issue here by reference.

On p. 11 of her Petition for Review, Petitioner argues that an alleged discrepancy in Chase's credit bid made at the non-judicial foreclosure sale was a violation of the Consumer Protection Act. Chase made a credit bid in the amount of \$95,798.49 at the non-judicial foreclosure sale. The property ultimately sold for \$172,500. The Trustee ultimately paid Chase \$95,814.82 from the sale proceeds, which was \$16.33 greater than Chase's credit bid.

Petitioner apparently contends that Chase was required to bid the entire amount of her debt owed to Chase when it made the credit bid, and that the subsequent determination that Chase was owed \$16.33 more than the credit bid was a violation of the Consumer Protection Act. She cites no Washington Supreme Court cases, or any legal authority to support this claim. Thus, there is no conflict between the Court of Appeal decision to affirm the trial court's grant of summary judgment to Chase on this issue and a Washington Supreme Court case.

Petitioner then argues, at pp. 11-12 of her Petition, that there was "collusive bidding" at the Trustee's sale, and that the Trustee nonetheless moved forward with the sale to the highest bidder. Petitioner cites several Washington Supreme Court cases supporting her argument that the Trustee disregarded his statutory duties by doing so. Neither the Superior Court nor the Court of Appeals disregarded these decisions. Rather, the Superior Court granted Chase's motion for summary judgment on the grounds that Petitioner provided no facts or evidence to support her claim of collusive bidding. Lacking a factual basis to find collusive bidding, the Court of Appeals' opinion does not conflict with the Washington Supreme Court cases cited by Petitioner at pp. 11-12 of her brief.

Petitioner next argues that the Trustee waited 48 days after the sale of the property to deposit surplus funds into the registry of the Superior Court. Chase was not the Trustee, and did not hold the surplus funds. Since this argument is directed towards a different party, Chase does not address this argument in its Answer to the Petition.

On p. 13 of her Petition, Petitioner cites *Lovejoy v. Americus*, 111 Wash. 571, 574, 191 P. 790 (1920) and *Miebach v. Colasurdo*, 102 Wn2d 170, 685 P.2d 1074 (1984) for the proposition that a Trustee sale can be voided if the purchase price is grossly inadequate. In *Miebach*, the sales price was less than two percent of the fair market value of the property. The Court of Appeals found that the property sold for 74.1 percent of its fair market value. Its decision that this was not a grossly inadequate sales price is not inconsistent with any of the cases cited by Petitioner in her Petition.

B. <u>THE COURT OF APPEALS' DECISION IS</u> <u>NOT IN CONFLICT WITH THE DECISIONS</u> <u>OF OTHER COURTS OF APPEAL.</u>

At p. 13 of her Petition, Petitioner cites Sutton v. Tacoma School District No. 10, et al., 180 Wn. App. 859, 324 P.3d 763 (2014) for the proposition that summary judgment is inappropriate if a party's deposition

testimony and declaration create material issues of fact. The issue in the case was whether the Court could accept the plaintiff's sworn testimony at face value, or whether the plaintiff needed to provide independent evidence to support her claims.

The Court of Appeals' opinion in this case is not in disagreement with *Sutton*. The Superior Court found that the Petitioner's declaration did not create a material issue of fact precluding the entry of Summary Judgment, and the Court of Appeals affirmed the Superior Court. Thus, the Court of Appeals' opinion is not inconsistent with *Sutton*.

Similarly, Petitioner cites *Blake v. Federal Way Cycle Center*, 40 Wn. App. 302, 698 P.2d 578 (1985) for the proposition that violations of the Deed of Trust Act are unfair because consumers have no way to avoid the harm caused when the rules are broken during foreclosure. The Court of Appeals' decision in this case is not inconsistent with *Blake*. It found no violations of the Deed of Trust Act, and thus *Blake* is inapposite.

Petitioner next cites *Tatham v. Rogers*, 170 Wn. App. 76, 283 P.3d 583 (2012) in relation to her claim that the Superior Court Judge showed bias and should have recused himself. In *Tatham*, the Court of Appeals reversed the trial court judge's refusal to recuse himself. It found that the trial court judge had abused his discretion because he had based his decisions on facts outside the record. As Chase pointed out in its

Response Brief filed in the Court of Appeals, at pp. 29-33, there is no evidence that the Superior Court Judge was biased. Moreover, Petitioner's allegations of bias were not raised in the Superior Court. The Court of Appeals found that she had waived the argument by failing to raise it in Superior Court, and that she had not presented any evidence of bias. *Tatham* is not inconsistent with the Court of Appeals decision on this issue.

С. THIS APPEAL DOES NOT RAISE OF SIGNIFICANT OUESTIONS UNDER OF THE CONSTITUTION THE STATE OF WASHINGTON OR THE UNITED STATES.

Petitioner argues that her claim that the Superior Court judge was impartial implicates the due process clause of the Fourteenth Amendment. However, as noted above, there is no evidence in the record supporting Petitioner's claim that the Superior Court judge was impartial. Moreover, by failing to raise the issue in the Superior Court, Petitioner waived the issue. Allowing a party to proceed to a final judgment in the Superior Court without raising concerns about judicial impartiality, and then raise issues relating to judicial bias for the first time on appeal, would encourage litigants to take their chances in the Superior Court, knowing that they could then file unfounded allegations of judicial bias and attempt to get a second trial in front of a new judge. By failing to raise the issue in Superior Court, Petitioner did not provide the Superior Court with the opportunity to address her claims or concerns, or to create a record upon which the issue could be reviewed by an appellate court.

Petitioner also argues that the Superior Court judge erred when it refused to allow Petitioner more time to conduct discovery or obtain a declaration from her daughter relating to alleged misconduct at the judicial foreclosure sale. She complains that Chase filed its motion for summary judgment two days after she filed an Amended Third-Party Complaint on February 19, 2014. However, this allegation of error does not raise a constitutional issue. Moreover, Petitioner neglects to inform this Court that she first filed a Third-Party Complaint against JPMorgan Chase & Co. on July 29, 2013. On September 9, 2013, JPMorgan Chase & Co. filed a motion for summary judgment in which it attacked the substantive merits of Petitioner's claim against it relating to the conduct of the Trustee's sale. The arguments in JPMorgan Chase & Co.'s motion for summary judgment, filed September 9, 2013, were nearly identical to those contained in JPMorgan Chase Bank's motion for summary judgment filed in February 2014. Petitioner was well aware of the substantive arguments that JPMorgan Chase Bank was likely to raise in defending against her claims. At no time, after filing her Third-Party Complaint in July 2013,

did Petitioner attempt to take any discovery. Nor did she file a motion asking the court for additional time for leave to take discovery, or a Rule 56(f) motion. Consequently, the Superior Court was correct in granting Chase's motion for summary judgment, and the Court of Appeals was correct when it affirmed the Superior Court on this issue.

D. THIS CASE DOES NOT INVOLVE ISSUES OF SUBSTANTIAL PUBLIC INTEREST THAT SHOULD BE DETERMINED BY THE SUPREME COURT.

Petitioner's Petition identifies no new or substantial issues that warrant the granting of her Petition. She argues that it took 284 days from the Trustee's sale until the date the Superior Court mailed her a check for her surplus funds. Those funds remained in the registry of the Superior Court while another bank that held a second mortgage on her property filed a claim against those funds. While, as stated above, Chase had no involvement in the handling of the surplus funds, Petitioner's dissatisfaction with the time it took the Superior Court to release the surplus funds to her certainly gives rise to no viable claim against Chase, which never held the funds and never claimed any interest in the surplus funds.

V. <u>CONCLUSION</u>

Accordingly, Chase respectfully request that the Court deny

Petitioner's Petition for Review.

DATED this $\frac{\partial O}{\partial x}$ day of November, 2015.

KEESAL YOUNG & LOGAN

Herbert H. Ray, Jr., WSBA No. 30848 Attorneys for Respondent JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.